
 
INDOT ADA Community Advisory Working Group 

February 11, 2014 
Draft Meeting Minutes 

 
I. Welcome 

 
Ms. Higgins called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. at the 
Central Library located at 40 E. St. Clair Street, Indianapolis, IN 
46204. 
 
Members Present: 
Melody Cooper, Erica Macke, Orion Bell, Lenard Miller, 
Melissa Draper, Cathy Gross, Mary Schaffer, Cody Mullen, Lori 
Rushin, Matt Norris, Barbara Salisbury and Jordy Stringer (via 
phone) 
 
Members Absent: 
Jim Allbaugh, Sheri Caveda and Lori Miller 
 
Also in attendance: 
Latosha Higgins, Kimberly Radcliff, Heather Kennedy, Will 
Wingfield, Joe Bruno and David Boruff of the Indiana 
Department of Transportation (INDOT), Kenneth Woodruff and 
Eryn Fletcher of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA),  
 
Ms. Higgins explained the responsibilities of the Working 
Group members and gave a brief overview of what is expected.  
 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 



II. Adoption of Minutes 
 
The Working Group adopted the minutes of the August 2013 
meeting.  
 

III. Overview INDOT’s Responsibilities versus Local Public 
Agencies 

 
Ms. Higgins gave an overview of INDOT’s and the Local Public 
Agencies’ (LPA) responsibilities on maintaining the public 
rights of way.  

 
IV. Overview of Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS) 
 
Ms. Higgins informed the Working Group that INDOT adopted 
the APS previously shared at the August meeting.  She stated 
that INDOT developed procedures to implement the policy.  
 
Mr. Boruff of Traffic Administration with INDOT gave an 
overview of the APS implementation policy.   Ms. Higgins and 
the Working Group discussed adding the external APS request 
form to the INDOT website.  Mr. Boruff explained that external 
requests for APS signals would be processed through the 
Economic Opportunity Division by the Title VI/ADA Program 
Manager.   
 
Ms. Schaffer asked if the APS policy was the same one 
discussed at the West Lafayette meeting in August 2013.  She 
also asked if the new Working Group members received a copy 
of the policy reviewed in August 2013.  Ms. Higgins stated she 

Page 2 of 6 

 
 



would make a copy available to the new Working Group 
members who were not present at the August 2013.  
 
Ms. Schaffer requested that INDOT expound on how the policy 
would address the location of the APS buttons and design. She 
requested that INDOT provide clarification for the new working 
groups members regarding how the policy would be binding to 
new construction.  Ms. Higgins explained that the policy applies 
to all existing facilities, alterations and new construction.   
 
Mr. Boruff explained INDOT’s process for reviewing facilities 
to determine whether installation of an APS would be 
appropriate.  Additionally, he explained how the ambient noise 
features of an APS function.   
 
Ms. Schaffer requested that INDOT expound on how it would 
determine there is a need for an APS audible system.   Ms. 
Higgins explained that there are a variety of factors that INDOT 
considers when determining whether to install an APS.  She 
added that INDOT would consider all requests for APS.   
 
The Working Group members requested that Ms. Higgins 
provide additional information regarding the number of APS 
currently in Indiana, including the location.  Additionally, the 
Working Group members requested a copy of the adopted APS 
policy. 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 
 



V. Curb Ramps 
 

Ms. Higgins informed that Working Group that in response to 
the Joint Technical Assistance released by the US Department of 
Justice (DOJ) and US Department of Transportation (DOT), 
INDOT evaluated it policies and procedures as they related to 
the installation of curb ramps during alterations.  She stated that 
INDOT identified areas for improvement and rescinded the 
design memorandum that did not conform to the guidance 
provided by the DOJ and DOT.  She added that INDOT is in the 
process of updating its design manual to provide clear directions 
to designers and contractors.  Additionally, she explained that 
INDOT recognized the need for additional training for INDOT 
staff to ensure compliance with the ADA.  
 
Ms. Higgins informed the Working Group that INDOT posts its 
design memorandums on its website.  She encouraged Working 
Group members to contact her if they need assistance finding a 
particular design memorandum.   
 
Ms. Higgins also described the two-day ADA training session 
INDOT and the FHWA jointly presented to INDOT staff.  She 
explained that participants traversed City of Indianapolis 
sidewalks using wheelchairs, white canes, blindfolds and low 
vision goggles to experience the challenges faced by persons 
with disabilities navigating the public rights of way.   

 
VI. Pre-Award Certification Assurance 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 
 



Ms. Higgins provided an update on the status of  what Indiana 
local public agencies (LPA) to comply with the ADA.    She 
reviewed the LPA pre-award certification process, which is a 
self-certification process, and explained how INDOT audits 
LPAs. 

Ms. Gross explained her experience completing the pre-award 
certification and assurance for her community.  She added that 
she is trying to start an ADA Coordinator Group for other ADA 
Coordinators to connect with one another to assist one another 
with complying with the ADA.  She stated that she urges other 
communities to complete the survey and review the questions 
several times throughout the year. 

Ms. Higgins briefly reviewed that type of questions asked on the 
pre-award certification and assurance and explained the review 
process for communities that fail to respond to the pre-award 
certification and assurance or report that they are not in 
compliance.  She stated that the pre-award certification and 
assurance is an annual requirement for LPAs.  She added that 
the survey would open in July 2014 and close in September 
2014.  She also stated that she is constantly working to make the 
pre-award certification and assurance user friendly.  
 
Mr.  Miller inquired about the INDOT website.  Ms. Higgins 
explained that she would have an individual present at the next 

Page 5 of 6 

 
 



meeting to discuss the INDOT website and how the agency is 
working to ensure that it is accessible to the public. 
 
The Working Group also discussed Mr. Lenard Miller’s 
recommendation that INDOT house the LPA transition plans on 
the INDOT website and make the information available for the 
public.  Ms. Higgins stated that LPAs should be sure to update 
the transition plans that they have on their own websites.   
 

VII. Meeting Schedule 
 

The Working Group discussed its meeting schedule and agreed 
to continue with quarterly meetings with the option to meet 
more frequently if necessary.  They also discussed to option of 
meeting via a telephone conference or communicating via email 
if necessary.  Ms. Higgins announced that the next meeting 
would be May 13, 2014. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

Page 6 of 6 

 
 


